IDT 607: Evaluation of Instructional Systems Evaluation Plan

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Instructional Design and Technology (MSIDT)

By

Jeanne R. Perrone

On

January 28, 2019

To

Dr. Lisa Johnson

Table of Contents

| Learning Processes and Outcomes | 3 |
|---------------------------------|----|
| Assessment Methods | |
| Formative Assessment | 5 |
| Summative Assessment | 8 |
| Assessment Alignment | |
| Interventions Implementation | |
| Intervention Dissemination | |
| Intervention Diffusion | |
| Summary of Revisions | 24 |
| References | |

Learning Processes and Outcomes

The purpose of the evaluation is to examine the effectiveness of programs. According to McDavid (2013), evaluations provide information to the program development team and their stakeholders. A successful program must accomplish its planned outcomes. Programs are evaluated using a series of data collecting tools whose results examine the incremental effects of the program.

In a study that focused on medical education, Fromer's study (2017) evaluates the effect of concept based vs. a traditional curriculum in a clinical setting. Concept-based curriculum vs. traditional curriculum decreases the number of concepts taught but provides more in-depth coverage of the covered concepts to bridge a theory-practice gap found in nursing education.

Since the instructional strategies were similar, the subject of the study gave insights that would prove useful for the design and development of the assessment tools used in this MSIDT project. Fromer (2017) states that concept based learning which uses a student-centered approach is derived from the theory of constructivism and based on cognitive learning theory. According to this theory, learning involves the processing of information. Learners become actively involved in the learning process when the lesson material has meaning and connection to their experience. The learning environment allowed learners to process information at both the factual and conceptual levels. The environment helped the learners make connections and develop a deeper level of understanding. Fromer's study found this learning environment reported positive though not statistically significant student outcomes through increased engagement, motivation, and clinical competencies.

Instructional materials and delivery for this MSIDT project were chosen to emphasize and increase participant engagement, motivation, and clinical competencies. The assessments

that will be designed for this program will measure participants success in achieving course outcomes and request feedback on their experience with both online and face-to-face training.

Assessment Methods

Piskurich (2015) states that the importance of evaluation is examining if the program provided what it set out to do. He discusses that one evaluates for two reasons: 1) because someone wants to make sure the program was effective, or 2) because the instructional designer wants to know. What is important is knowing what to evaluate and what will be done with the results of the evaluation. For this project the targets of the evaluation are: 1) online course navigation, 2) online course feedback, 3) online course knowledge testing, 4) training feedback, 5) participant assessment during training and 6) skill retention after training is completed. Formative and summative assessments will be the tools used to collect the data needed for evaluation of the program.

According to McDavid (2013), formative assessments or evaluations are used to provide feedback and advice to which is used to improve the program. Spector et al. (2016) note that the purpose of formative assessment is to support learning. The integration of formative assessments into teaching brings about an improvement in student performance and promote learner skills (p. 58). Formative assessments are critical to an instructor's ability to adapt lessons and check for student understanding. Adapting lessons and checking for student understanding is necessary for evaluation of this MSIDT project as this will turn into a data collection point in the summative assessment to see if skills are retained in the short and long term.

Summative assessments, according to McDavid (2016), looks at whether the program has achieved its intended objectives. In the case of this project, the summative evaluation will examine if the skills learned during the online and face-to-face training can be used by the

participant initially after the training is complete and after time has passed. The summative assessment takes the outcomes of the program and examines its effectiveness for the participants. McDavid says that summative assessments "ask the tough questions" to see if the program is worth the time and energy put into it.

For this MSIDT project, the data will be collected using three types of assessments. The first tool will be in the form of diagnostic assessments specifically a self-instructional reaction evaluation to check for issues with course navigation, and the difficulty of the unit materials a post-course survey for feedback on the participant's experience. The second tool will be formative assessments using participant feedback of their evaluation of their progress, rubric-based observations to grade their completion of the course outcomes, and unit quizzes. The third tool will be a summative assessment using post-training surveys to assess long-term skill retention.

Formative Assessment

Online Pre-Course

Self-instructional reaction evaluation. A self-instructional reaction evaluation such as the one developed by Piskurich (2015, pp. 321-324) would be used at various points during the course when the questions would provide a comprehensive response. This evaluation will examine the difficulty of course navigation and course materials. Questions in this evaluation focus on usability, engagement, and content.

The evaluation would examine the usability of the course, challenge level, engagement, and motivation for the participant. Usability questions can be asked both at the beginning and the end of the course. Early responses on usability can allow the designer to make changes when the course is live and determine if those changes brought improvement for the participant.

Engagement questions can be used after each unit to determine the level of interactivity and motivation the participant experienced. Results could cause changes to the content and technology used to teach the participant. Content questions can be used at the end of the course to decide if the material brought the right amount of challenge and were easy to understand.

Progress evaluation. At the end of each online unit, the participant will be asked to reflect on their interaction with the course material. Angelo and Cross (1993) developed a handbook on classroom assessment techniques (CATs). CATs allow instructors to observe their student's learning through the collection of frequent feedback. The purpose of the feedback is for the teacher to learn about how their students learn and how those students respond to particular teaching approaches. Though these techniques were designed for in-classroom use as they would be during the face-to-face session of this project, but can also be utilized with online students. In Li's research (2018) interviewed both traditional and online faculty in their use of CATs. The results of the study found that both traditional and online faculty found improvement in student performance and the ability to locate areas of needed improvement in course content and delivery. The two that would provide the most useful results would be Muddiest Point and Background Knowledge Probe (Angelo, 1993, pp. p 121, 154).

For this project, CATs would be filled out at the end of each unit. The two that would provide the most useful results would be Muddiest Point and Background Knowledge Probe (Angelo, 1993). As the name suggests, Muddiest Point would ask the participant to provide feedback on what concept from the unit was the most confusing. This feedback would mean revisiting the unit and making the adjustment to remove the confusion. Background Knowledge Probe has the participants share their previous or personal experience with the unit topic. This feedback would be requested before they begin the unit and would ascertain the participants

experience with the unit topic. The results could lead to increasing or decreasing the depth the unit topic would cover.

Unit quizzes. At the end of each unit, a multiple-choice quiz would be given to test for knowledge retention. The quizzes will be kept open until the participant achieves a score of 100%. If the number of retakes is high, this could mean the material is too complicated, or the question is not substantiated in the course material, or the question is badly written. The result trends will be examined to see if any connections can be made.

Face-to-Face Training

Observation with rubrics. The face-to-face training gives the participant hands-on experience learning how to take dental radiographs. The trainer will demonstrate each view and grade the participant using a rubric-based checklist. The steps will be listed out with a corresponding grade. The total for all steps completed will be 100%. Grading each step will allow the evaluator to see what steps are causing difficulty for the participant and will be addressed at the time of the training. The added training will provide an additional review opportunity for the rest of the participants.

Post-course survey. The survey will ask questions that will gain insight on the participant's engagement, content, and their experience with the live demonstrations. The engagement questions will examine the participants feedback on the level of complexity and engagement. This information will be used to see if there are dead spots where there is a lack of interest due to irrelevance to their current situation, or the learning curve was too high making the material too complicated. The content questions will examine if the content showed cohesiveness from one unit to the next. Lastly, the participants will get feedback on their

experience working with live demonstrations. The results will show the evaluator if any steps are missing or could be explained better.

Summative Assessment

Transfer To Job Instrument

Piskurich (2015) discusses the importance of skills evaluation to ascertain if the participant has knowledge mastery and retention. This instrument will be administered six weeks after training is completed. The performance tests are conducted by the participant on the job site. A second test would examine whether the job is being performed at a higher level than previously. For this project, the evaluator wants to know if the training addressed the requirements of the job. Are the participants competently taking dental radiographs on a regular basis? These evaluations can be sent every six weeks for six months to a year.

The layout of the survey will list out the steps involved with taking dental radiographs.

The participant would rate whether they performed this skill well before the training, do as well currently, or perform the skill better than before the training. If participants are struggling, follow-up support could be provided through a website moderated by a trainer. A subscription fee could be built into the training fee to pay for the trainer that would be moderating the course.

Assessment Alignment

Assessment methods are the tools, strategies, and techniques used to collect the information that shows the learners are demonstrating the desired learning outcomes. Well-rounded assessments use multiple ways to achieve results that are more meaningful, valid and reliable (WSSU, n.d.). The WSSU article recommends a combination of direct and indirect assessment methods. A direct method such as a test, an essay presentation requires the student to demonstrate a task. An indirect method such as a survey or an interview has students reflect on their learning. Using

either a direct or an indirect method limits the assessment to only a part of a learner's achievement because they are insufficient in measuring the learning outcomes of the program.

A solution is choosing multi-modal assessment methods that not only measure learner performance but also assess the program.

When choosing an assessment method, it should provide the most useful and relevant information about the performance. More importantly, the chosen method should align the learning objective. A mapping process ensures that all the objectives will be assessed using a variety of methods and can develop a comprehensive and effective assessment plan. In Krathwohl's 2002 paper on revising Bloom's taxonomy, there are examples of taxonomy tables. A taxonomy table is a two-dimensional table that places the Knowledge dimension on the vertical axis, and the Cognitive Process dimension forms the horizontal axis (Krathwohl, pp. 216-217). Course objectives are classified in the taxonomy table in one or more cells that corresponds to the categorizing cell. The taxonomy table analyses the unit objectives and provides an indication of the complexity of knowledge and cognitive processes involved.

Kozikoglu (2018) examined the alignment between a national assessment and an English language curriculum using the revised Bloom's taxonomy. He noted that objectives needed to align to the instruction and be expressed clearly to avoid wasting time and money. Academic success, according to Kozikoglu, is not related to what a student can remember but how they can integrate their new knowledge and skills to their prior knowledge. To ensure learning is achieved at the higher levels of complexity, metacognitive skills need to be developed. Aligned teaching and assessment enable learners to move from retention to transfer of knowledge. Both the assessment and the objectives should address all levels of Bloom's taxonomy to provide a wide range of cognitive processes (p. 71).

The training course will be presented using the three principles of experiential learning. The three principles are 1) Framing the experience, 2) Activating the experience, and 3) Reflecting on the experience (Hirumi, 2016). InterPLAY is an instructional model that integrates universal principles of experiential learning and includes elements of Story, Play and Game. The use of story, play, and game/simulation increases participant engagement and learning (p. 1305). Each one of these elements integrates with the experiential learning principles. Story can be represented through characters, worlds, and events. Play can be represented through stimulus, response, and consequences. Game is represented through goals, rules, and tools. It is crucial to remember that when the instruction is integrated into the story, play or game/simulation and the instruction is enhanced.

For this course we will be using the grounded instructional strategies for InterPLAY – Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, and Experiment (Stapleton, 2014). Tasks are exposed during the online and training session. Inquire validates the success of the lesson in the online course and the demonstration in the face-to-face session as the participant creates a mental image. Discover enhances problem-solving techniques as potential challenges are found and solutions found to resolve them. Create occurs when there is interactive engagement with the subject matter. Experiment occurs when success is measured through feedback or evaluation. The strategies will be aligned with each one of the learning outcomes. The assessments that will be used to measure the progress and success of the participants is also aligned with the learning outcomes. When outcomes, strategies, and assessments align, it will increase the reliability and validity because it specifically measures what it learned (Morrison, 2012).

The objectives for this project were also classified in the Revised Bloom's Taxonomy

Table. The results show that in the online course the objectives are classified as lower order

thinking skills. These results make sense because the online course is preparatory with basic skills being taught. As we move into Units 6, 7 and 8, the participants are in the face-to-face session. The face-to-face session is hands-on which require higher order thinking skills. Tables 1 and 2 will map out each learning objective, measure cognitive processes using the revised Bloom's taxonomy with an appropriate assessment method.

Table 1

Online Pre-Course

Unit 1: Oral Anatomy of the Dog and Cat Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Metacognitive Knowledge: Remember

| Revised Bloom's Taxonomy. Metacognitive Knowledge. Remember | | |
|---|---|--|
| Performance | Identify the oral anatomy structures of the dog. | |
| Outcomes | | |
| | Identify the oral anatomy structures of the cat. | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Rationale | Correct identification of the oral anatomy ensures placement of the | |
| | digital x-ray sensor plate. | |
| InterPLAY | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | |
| Instructional Strategy | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Unit quiz | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Self Instructional Reaction Evaluation | |
| Anecdotal Records | | |

Unit 2: Charting the Oral Cavity Using the Modified Triadan Numbering System (MTNS)
Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Metacognitive Knowledge: Remember

| Performance | Label the dog dental chart using the MTNS. | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Outcomes | | | | |
| Label the cat dental chart using the MTNS. | | | | |
| Rationale | The MTNS labels dental x-ray images. Completion of this unit ensures | | | |
| | the images will be labeled correctly when the participant uses the dental | | | |
| | x-ray software. | | | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | | | |
| Instructional Strategy | | | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Unit quiz | | | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Self Instructional Reaction Evaluation | | | |
| Anecdotal Records | | | | |

Unit 3: Radiographic Equipment

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Metacognitive Knowledge: Remember

| Performance | Identify the parts of the dental x-ray generator. | | |
|------------------------|---|--|--|
| Outcomes | | | |
| | Describe the function of each part of the dental x-ray generator. | | |
| Rationale | Knowing the structure and function of the dental radiograph generator | | |
| | shows that the participant can fully and confidently operate the | | |
| | equipment. | | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | | |
| Instructional Strategy | | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Unit quiz | | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Self Instructional Reaction Evaluation | | |
| Anecdotal Records | | | |

Unit 4: Radiation Safety in Dentistry

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Procedural Knowledge: Remember

| Performance | Describe the steps necessary to practice dental x-ray safety. | |
|------------------------|--|--|
| Outcomes | | |
| | | |
| Rationale | Radiation is a hazardous substance in veterinary clinics. Radiation | |
| | safety needs to be practiced to keep staff members safe while they are | |
| | taking dental x-rays. | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | |
| Instructional Strategy | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Unit quiz | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Self Instructional Reaction Evaluation, | |
| Anecdotal Records | | |

Table 2

Face-to-Face Training

Unit 5: Online Pre-Course Review Quiz of Units 1-4

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Metacognitive Knowledge: Remember

| Rationale | Confirms the participants have completed the online course and | | |
|------------------------|--|--|--|
| | measures their retention of the course material. | | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover | | |
| Instructional Strategy | | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Unit quiz | | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Instructional Reaction Evaluation | | |
| Anecdotal Records | | | |

Unit 6: Troubleshooting the Dental Radiographic Image

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Conceptual Knowledge: Analyze, Evaluate

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Procedural Knowledge: Apply, Analyze, Evaluate

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Metacognitive Knowledge: Remember

| Performance | Identify the solutions to technical errors found on the finished dental | | |
|------------------------|---|--|--|
| Outcomes | radiograph. | | |
| | | | |
| Rationale | Teaching the participants how to evaluate a finished image improves | | |
| | their troubleshooting skills and improves outcomes. | | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | | |
| Instructional Strategy | | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Rubric | | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Instructional Reaction Evaluation, Transfer to Job | | |
| Anecdotal Records | Instrument every six weeks up to six months or a year. | | |

Unit 7: Sensor Placement

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Procedural Knowledge: Apply

| Performance | Identify the appropriate tooth or teeth and set up the correct location of | | |
|------------------------|--|--|--|
| Outcomes | the sensor. | | |
| | | | |
| Rationale | Proficiency will demonstrate the participant is confident navigating the | | |
| | oral cavity and the participant recalls the steps of the demonstration and | | |
| | understands the interrelationship between correct tooth identification | | |
| | and placement of the sensor. | | |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. | | |
| Instructional Strategy | | | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Rubric | | |
| Direct testing | Summative: Instructional Reaction Evaluation, Transfer to Job | | |
| Anecdotal Records | Instrument every six weeks up to six months or a year. | | |

Unit 8: Tube head Angulation

Revised Bloom's Taxonomy: Procedural Knowledge: Analyze

| Performance | Confirming correct placement of the sensor, set up the correct |
|------------------------|--|
| Outcomes | angulation of the tube head. |
| Rationale | Proficiency will demonstrate the participant is confident navigating the x-ray tube head and the participant recalls the steps of the demonstration and understands the interrelationship between correct tooth length and the angle of the tube head. |
| InterPlay | Expose, Inquire, Discover, Create, Experiment. |
| Instructional Strategy | |
| Assessment Method | Formative: Progress evaluation using CATs, Rubric |
| Direct testing | |

| Anecdotal Records | Summative: Instructional Reaction Evaluation, Transfer to Job | | |
|-------------------|---|--|--|
| | Instrument every six weeks up to six months or a year. | | |

Interventions Implementation

The development of effective skills and techniques for taking dental radiographs using the proper positioning of the digital sensor will improve the assessment and diagnosis of pathology. The scope of this project is to develop dental radiography training for staff members of veterinary clinics. During the initial analysis of the project, surveys collected from trainers revealed a training gap that caused participants to be less successful during the first training and when they apply their newly learned skills. The focus of the training is 1) taking radiographs of all tooth types in the dog and cat, 2) taking radiographs with a minimum of technical errors, and 3) prepare participants to start performing full mouth radiographs on anesthetized patients in the workplace.

The core delivery will be in two sessions – pre-coursework and face-to-face sessions. The pre-course work will be delivered in an online classroom. The purpose of the pre-coursework is to prepare the participant for the face-to-face training session with units that cover the oral anatomy, record keeping, radiographic equipment, and safety skills. The online course will be monitored and assessed by the assigned trainer for technical issues with delivery and problems experienced by the user. Data will be collected using formative and summative assessments which will measure the participant's progress with the learning objectives, their experience navigating through the course, and their experience with the content. The results will be analyzed once a group has completed the course. Revisions to the software and delivery will be made before the next group begins the online course.

The clinic will be contacted by email at the time of registration to fill out an inventory of the dental x-ray equipment and its functionality. The clinic will also provide details on where the training will take place in their treatment area. The face-to-face session will be taught in the requesting clinic by the assigned trainer. The session will cover dental x-ray positioning in the dog and cat and troubleshooting common technical errors. The face-to-face classroom is the best choice because the learning will require the participant to interact physically with the equipment. This session provides skill building through interaction with the dental x-ray equipment under the supervision of a trainer.

The delivery of the face-to-face course will provide a condensed review of the pre-course work, and then the participants will be given activities to perform. Each activity will be demonstrated by the trainer. The participants will then repeat the activity. Data will be collected using formative and summative assessments which will measure the participant's progress with the learning objectives, their experience navigating through the course, and their experience with the content. The results will be analyzed once a group has completed the course. Revisions to the delivery will be made before the next group begins the training.

Resources/Inputs

Online pre-course. To accomplish the activities needed for this project, the following resources are necessary:

- First year's funding (\$11,000)
- Veterinary clinics who request training in dental radiography for their staff members.
- A course authoring system is needed for the design and development of the online precourse.

• Lesson plans for the online pre-course. A standardized lesson plan will be designed and developed by the program manager and the stakeholders. This lesson plan will be required for use by all trainers involved with the course. The lesson plan will be revised on a yearly basis. The review will look at assessment data and training.

- Video and graphics programs for the online pre-course presentations.
- A learning management system that will provide the online pre-course.

Face-to-face training session. To accomplish the activities needed for this project, the following resources are necessary:

- A trainer for the session needs to have advanced veterinary dental radiography skills. A
 list of qualified trainers can be retrieved by permission from the Academy of Veterinary
 Dental Technicians
- Lesson plans for the face-to-face training session. A standardized lesson plan will be
 designed and developed by the program manager and the stakeholders. This lesson plan
 will be required for use by all trainers involved with the course. The lesson plan will be
 revised on a yearly basis. The review will look at assessment data and training
 observation.
- A bound training manual that corresponds with each training unit. Each activity will be presented in a step-by-step format. A standardized manual will be designed and developed by the program manager and the stakeholders. The manual will be given to all participants in the course to use within the session and once training is complete. The manual will be revised on a yearly basis. The review will look at assessment data and training observation.

 Cadaver specimens of a dog and cat head. These specimens will be purchased by the clinic through either Skulls Unlimited or NASCO. The specimens provide the most lifelike example of working with a patient.

• Dental models in the form of a cat and dog real bone skull and clear acrylic mouth models that show the full tooth. Dental models will be provided by the trainer.

Intervention Dissemination

Project Timeline

Design Time/Milestones. Performance analysis and an analysis of the target audience for each training assignment will be completed in two weeks. The objectives will be written to address the needs found in the performance analysis and the target audience analysis. Material development will take two weeks. A beta test and pilot of the project will bring the development of the completed design in two months.

Chapman Alliance. The Chapman Alliance (2010) published a research study on how long it takes to create a mode of learning. The study broke the modes of learning down into four types: 1) instructor-led training, 2) level 1 eLearning basic, 3) level 2 eLearning interactive, and 4) level 3 eLearning advanced.

Instructor-led training is a typical face-to-face environment. The average project requires a 43:1 ratio of development hours for one hour of class time. Level 1 eLearning basic are one-way presentations from online instructor to learner using content pages, graphics, simple audio/video, and test questions. The average project requires a 79:1 ratio. Level 2 eLearning

interactive adds about 25% more exercises that require interaction from the learner with the material. The average project requires a 184:1 ratio. Level 3 eLearning advanced is highly interactive with possible simulations or game-based learning. The average project requires a 490:1 ratio of development hours for one hour of class time.

Following the Chapman Alliance study, this project will utilize both classroom-led training during the face-to-face session and level 1 eLearning. The components of the Chapman Alliance study provide a list of the areas of development the course must travel and how long each area takes in development time. Table 3 is a delivery analysis integrating components from the Chapman Alliance study.

Table 3

Delivery Analysis

| Delivery Method | Days/Hours |
|--|---|
| Virtual Classroom/Learning Environment- | Home Page Orientation |
| LMS, LCMS | One hour of class time = 1 hour |
| Online Pre-Coursework | Unit 1 – Two Sections |
| The pre-course work prepares the participant | Each section is one hour of class time = 2 |
| for the face-to-face in-clinic training. | hours |
| Total number of units covered – 5 units | Unit 2 – Two Sections |
| Total class time – 7 hours | Each section is one hour of class time = 2 |
| | hours |
| | Unit 3 – One Section |
| | One hour of class time = 1 hour |
| | Unit 4 – One Section |
| | One hour of class time = 1 hour |
| | Total class time = 7 hours |
| | Chapman Alliance Level 1 Basic ratio = 79:1 |
| | Total Development Time = 553 hours/8 |
| | hours/day = 69 days |
| | · |
| Face-to-Face Training | Unit 5 – One Section |
| This session is a hands-on continuation of the | One hour of class time = 1 hour |
| online pre-course work. There is the addition | Unit 6 – One Section |
| of live demonstrations provided by a trainer | One hour of class time = 1 hour |
| - | Unit 7 – One Section |

and hands-on activities performed by the participant.

Total number of units covered – 4 units Total class time – 4 hours

One hour of class time = 1 hour
Unit 8 – One Section
One hour of class time = 1 hour
Total Class Time – 4 hours
Chapman Alliance Instructor-Led Training
Ratio = 43:1
Total Development Time = 172 hours/8
hours/day = 22 days

Demonstration equipment

For the face-to-face training, the dental x-ray generator and the sensor will be present for the participant to practice taking dental radiographs and gain confidence using the equipment.

Demonstration models

Demonstration models will be used during the active training session to point out anatomy and assist in demonstrating positioning techniques

0-1 hour

For in-clinic training, the equipment will already be on site. Phone time to confirm.

0-2 hours

The trainer or the clinic will provide these materials. Phone time to confirm

Total Hours – 646-649 hours Total Days – 80-81 days

Target Audience

The target audience will be a combination of credentialed veterinary technicians, certified veterinary assistants, and on-the-job trained staff. The staff members will either be currently performing dental procedures or the in the process of being trained to perform dental procedures. In some cases, veterinarians will participate in the training.

Challenges and Solutions

In instructional design as in project management, risk analysis benefits the project. Preparing for the worst-case scenario can lower the stress level should the problem arise and save the project money if resources are allocated to the potential problem. A risk response plan is an important part of the project plan presented to sponsors and stakeholders (Baca, 2007a). According to

Yet's article (2016), though rarely done, the success of large projects is contingent upon careful attention to uncertainty and risk. The sign of an experienced project manager is the ability to be a capable leader. An experienced leader is a strategist during the planning stages to recognize any possible issues involving the project. Then an experienced leader manages problem-solving when issues do come up. Table 3 shows the project challenges and solutions.

Table 3
Project Challenges and Solutions

| Project Objective | Delivery Method | Challenges | Solutions |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Development of practical skills | Virtual Classroom/Learning | Research to find the | Post a question to the |
| and techniques for taking | Environment– LMS, LCMS | system that is easiest to | Ashford University |
| dental radiographs using the | | navigate and | IDA LinkedIn group. |
| proper positioning of the | Rationale: | inexpensive. | Present the needs for |
| digital sensor. | The pre-training session will | | the project and have |
| | be an online course. The | Expandable to allow | them suggest a list of |
| Rationale: | platform for the course will be | content from outside | options for LMS |
| Learning to take dental | on an LMS or an LCMS. | sources. | programs that would |
| x-rays in the dog and cat has a | | T 1 | work best. |
| steeper learning curve than | | Large enough memory | |
| when learning to take them on | | to handle multimedia | |
| people due to differences in | | files. | |
| oral anatomy. | | Testing software | |
| | | included. | |
| | | | |
| | | Compatible LMS | |
| | | system to run the | |
| | Malaina dia Madaniala | course. Reused materials will | Outing County |
| | Multimedia Materials; Video | | Online Search: |
| | | need permissions. | Template permission |
| | Video clips will be used during | New clips will need to | forms for copyrighted |
| | the pre-training session to | be recorded | educational materials. |
| | demonstrate features of the | | Search sites/topics: |
| | anatomy and provide a | | Google |
| | preliminary positioning | | Copyright law |
| | training. | | E-Learning sites |
| | | | Make a list of needed |
| | | | clips and schedule |
| | | | time and for |
| | | | videotaping. |
| | | | Video presenter should be a VTS- |
| | | | |
| | | | Dentistry |

| Project Objective | Delivery Method | Challenges | Solutions |
|---|---|--|---|
| Improve the assessment and diagnosis of pathology. The participant is required to understand what constitutes a diagnostic dental radiograph. Producing radiographs that are diagnostic before the veterinarian reads them expedites the procedure. | Printed materials Handouts will be provided to the participants as part of the active training session. Each handout will contain instructions and a list of activities. | Handouts will be hard copy and electronic. Search query: Providing accessibility options for both hard copy and electronic materials | Post question to Ashford University IDA group: When providing both hard copy and electronic handouts, how does one incorporate accessibility options? |
| | Demonstration equipment For the active training, the dental x-ray generator and the sensor will be present for the participant to practice taking dental radiographs and gain confidence using the equipment. | Dental x-ray unit provided by the clinic, the manufacturer or distributor. Dental x-ray software and a corresponding digital sensor provided by the clinic, the manufacturer or distributor. | Get information about how the equipment is acquired by the clinic. |
| | Demonstration models Demonstration models will be used during the active training session to point out anatomy and assist in demonstrating positioning techniques | Dental models acquired from the veterinary supply company. Skulls acquired from an osteological supply company. Clear acrylic models acquired from a veterinary supply company. Cadaver specimens of the dog and cat acquired from a shelter or science educational supply company. | Inquire through a VTS-Dentistry where models can be acquired. |

Intervention Diffusion

Effect on Stakeholders

The stakeholders for this project are what is known as insider stakeholders as they are involved in the field of veterinary medical education with connections to dentistry. The stakeholders support and are involved with dental education in unique ways. The stakeholders were chosen to evaluate the various levels of the program with the possibility of being involved with the course once it formally begins.

The role of the stakeholder will be three-fold: 1) course development, 2) course evaluation, and 3) the yearly review. The stakeholder's role in course development is to ensure that the material is up-to-date with current texts and treatment protocols. The stakeholder's role in course evaluation is to review the assessment data and make suggestions for changes and improvements to both courses. The stakeholder's role in the yearly review is to analyze the changes made throughout the year, examine and update the references for relevance. This research will culminate in the yearly review that will measure the effectiveness of the courses and make any necessary changes to content and delivery.

Impact on Project

Online pre-course. If the activities are accomplished, the participants in the online pre-course will begin their education in veterinary dental radiology. Many veterinary staff members have taken little to no coursework in veterinary dentistry either because working in a veterinary clinic is a new experience or they have changed roles within the clinic. Rose (2017) states that cross-training provides an opportunity for staff members to understand another's duties and to better grasp the mission of that clinic.

The online course is meant to prepare the participants to transition into their face-to-face training seamlessly. The purpose of providing the online course is to adjust the participants so that everyone can enter the face-to-face training with similar skill sets. This tactic can reduce the need to spend time during the face-to-face training catching up participants who have fewer dental skills. The course units provide the learner with dentistry skills and knowledge they can also use throughout their career.

Face-to-face training. If the activities are accomplished, the participants in the face-to-face training will retain the learned skills to be able to start taking radiographs on their dog and cat patients. Veterinary team members are commonly required to take radiographs, both full-body, and dental (AVMA, 2017). This practice allows the doctor to spend more time providing diagnostics and treatment. Commonly the veterinarian will assess the radiographs after completion.

The training allows the participants to gain hands-on experience performing dental x-ray positioning of all teeth in the dog and cat. After training is complete, participants will be able to safely perform full mouth dental x-rays on the dog and cat with little to no supervision.

According to the American Animal Hospital Association (2013), full mouth radiographs are a part of the comprehensive oral health assessment and treatment (COHAT), and veterinary staff members are responsible for performing the imaging. The images are taken at the beginning of the procedure so that the veterinarian can make adjustments to the treatment plan. The patient is under general anesthesia to avoid blurry images, and sensor damage should a patient bite down on it. The impact of providing dental x-rays increases diagnostic accuracy. The impact of having trained staff is the ability to perform the dental radiographs efficiently which decreases time under anesthesia.

The 10% of participants that are unsuccessful with the training require additional training support which will be investigated if the evaluation proves the statement is true. For participants that are struggling after training is completed, an interactive online service could be set up to provide support. The service could be provided through a website with a paid subscription or service fee. Resources would require the employment of a trainer and administrative staff to provide services.

Summary of Revisions

Week Four

- Further elaboration of the post-training surveys is necessary to help validate the reason
 this assessment tool would be helpful to measure the skill retention of participants that
 completed the training.
- 2. The next revision is to compare Piskurich's (2015, pp. 321-324) self-instructional reaction evaluation with Kirkpatrick's Level 1 Evaluation Model (2000) which is Reaction. The reaction level looks at how the participant feels about the various aspects of the training program. If participants do not have positive feelings about the training will not take in the full benefits and not see the experience as valuable. Seeing the experience as positive can set the parameters for the experience for future participants.

Week Five

1. The increased use of active language would take the writing to the next level by making the points clearer.

2. After training is complete and the participant has returned to their place of work, define the struggling participant. The struggling participant requires additional training after completion. A metric is necessary to determine at-risk or struggling trainees.

- 3. Review and integrate Donald Clarke's, "The Three Domains of Learning" into the section that looks at cognitive taxonomy.
- Become familiar with APA style tables and change the current tables into this format.
 Move the tables into an appendix at the end of the document.

References

- Angelo, T. C. (1993). Classroom Assessment Techniques: A Handbook for College Teacherd.

 San Francisco: Jossey-Bass Publishers.
- AVMA. (2017, March 15). New resources promote reducing radiation exposure. Retrieved from JAVMA News: Practice:

 https://www.avma.org/News/JAVMANews/Pages/170315k.aspx
- Baca, C. (2007a). You've been assigned a project. In C. Baca, *Project Managements for Mere Mortals*. Boston: Pearson Education. Retrieved from https://bookshelf.vitalsource.com/books/9780132704656/epubcfi/6/24%5B%3Bvnd.vst.i dref%3Dch02%5D
- Chapman, B. (2010). *How long does it take to create learning*. Retrieved from Chapman Alliance, LLC: www.chapmanalliance.com
- Fromer, R. (2017). Theory-driven integrative process/outcome evaluation of a concept-based nursing curriculum. *Nursing Education Perspectives, 38*(5), 267-269. doi:doi: 10.1097/01.NEP.0000000000000140
- Hirumi, A. J.-G. (2016). Advancing virtual patient simulations through design research and interPLAY: part II integration and field test. *Education Tech Research Dev*, 64, 1301-1335. doi:10.1007/s11423-016-9461-6
- Holmstrom, S. B. (2013). 2013 AAHA dental care guidelines for dogs and cats. *Journal of the American Animal Hospital Association*, 49(2), 75-82.

Kozikoglu, I. (2018). The examination of alignment between national assessment and english curriculum objectives using revised Bloom's taxonomy. *Educational Research Quarterly*, 41(4), 50-77. Retrieved from http://eds.b.ebscohost.com.proxy-library.ashford.edu/eds/pdfviewer/pdfviewer?vid=7&sid=355a78db-731a-4af7-a64d-09945210e843%40sessionmgr120

- Krathwohl, D. (2002). A revision of bloom's taxonomy: An overview. *Theory into Practice*, *41*(4), 212-218. doi:10.1207/s15430421tip4104 2
- Li, M. v. (2018). Traditonal and online faculty member's use of classroom assessment techniques (CATs): A mixed-method study. *Journal of Instructional Research*, 7, 90-99. Retrieved from https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1188320
- McDavid, J. H. (2013). Key concepts and issues in program evaluation and performance measurement. In J. H. McDavid, *Program Mangement and Performance Measurement:*An Introduction to Practice (2nd ed.). Los Angeles: Sage Publications. Retrieved from https://content.ashford.edu/
- Morrison, G. R. (2012). Developing evaluation instruments. In G. R. Morrison, *Designing effective instruction* (7th ed., pp. 278-315). Hoboken, NJ: John Wiley & Sons.
- Naugle, K. N. (2000). Kirkpatricks evaluation model as a means of evaluating teacher performance. *Education*, *121*(1), 135-144.
- Piskurich, G. (2015). Did it do any good? Evaluation. In G. Piskurich, *Rapid Instructional Design: Learning ID Fast and Right* (3rd ed., pp. 311-352). Hoboken: John Wiley & Sons, Inc.

Rose, R. (2017, July 19). How to achieve veterinary team success through synergy: Tips to make your practice run more smoothly. Retrieved from Veterianry Practice News:

https://www.veterinarypracticenews.com/how-to-achieve-veterinary-team-success-through-synergy/

- Spector, J. I. (2016). Technology enhanced formative assessment for 21st century learning. *Educational Technology & Society*, 19(3), 58-71. Retrieved from http://www.ifets.info/
- Stapleton, C. H. (2014). Designing InterPLAY learning landscapes to evoke emotions, spark the imagination, and promote creative problem solving. In A. Hirumi, *Grounded Designs for Hybrid and Online Learning* (pp. 159-190). Eugene: International Society for Technology in Education.
- WSSU. (n.d.). Assessment methods. Retrieved from Assessment and Research:

 https://www.wssu.edu/about/assessment-andresearch/niloa/_files/documents/assessmentmethods.pdf
- Yet, B. C. (2016). A bayesian network framework for project cost, benefit, and risk analysis with an agricultural development case study. *Expert Systems with Applications*, 60, 141-155. doi:10.1016/j.eswa.2016.05.005